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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor
and Board of Alderimen
City of Batesville, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
aclivities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Batesvilile,
Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015 and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Munagement's Responsibility for the Financinl Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and mamtenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the Uniled States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
eircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eftectiveness of the City's internal
control, Accordingly. we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation ol the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions,

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
the apgregate remaining fund information of the City of Batesville, Mississippi as of September 30, 2015
and the respective changes in financial position and; where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 9, in fiscal 2015, the City of Batesville, Mississippi has adopted the
provisions of GGovernmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. The transilional requirements resulted
in a restatermnent to decrease the beginning net position by $8,971,609 in governmental activities
and $2,666,229 in business-type activities. As discussed in Note 12, there was also a restatement
to decrease the beginning net position by $207,987 in governmental activities to correct a fiscal
2014 error,

Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

management's discussion and analysis, and the budgetary comparison information on pages

4-10 and 51-54, and the City’s proportionate share of net pension liability on page 48 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements,
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Batesviltle, Mississippi's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A- 133, dudits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is
also not a required part of the basic financial statements.
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The schedule of expenditures of federal awards 1s the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statemenis or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated May 5, 2016
on our consideration of the City of Batesville, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe Lhe scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City of Batesville, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%/h ,(/ Jlex .

Batesville, Mississippi

May 5, 2016



CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

An overall review of the City’s financial activities and performance for the year ending
September 30, 2015 is provided in this Discussion and Analysis of the City of Batesville. The
discussion and analysis looks at the financial performance as a whole, but it is suggested that
the basic financial statements be reviewed to help in the understanding,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased approximately $3,952,000 or 6.3%
from 2014,

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased approximately $13,596,000 or
109.4% from that previously reported for 2014. This is distorted due to the $13,370,000 in net
pension liability and $359,000 in deferred inflows that accounting standards require to be
reported in 2015.

Total net position decreased approximately $9,644,000 or 19.3%. This was primarily the result
of a negative ($11,638,000) adjustment to reflect the new accounting standard, before the
$2,202.000 increase resulting from this year’s operations.

The governmental expenses exceeded revenues by approximately ($310,000) before grants and
transfers. The City’s business-type revenues exceeded related expenses by approximately
$1,244,000 before grants and transfers.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities (pages | 1-13) provide information about the activities of the
City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's finanees. Fund financial
statements start on page 14. For governmental activities, these financial statements explain the
financing of these services, plus they report the City’s operations in more detail by providing
information on the City’s most significant funds.

Reporting the City as a Whole

The City’s analysis as a whole will begin on page 6. A question often asked: "Is the City as a
whole better or worse off as a result of the 2015 activities?” To help with the answer to this
question, a look at the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities will provide
the answer. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. The
current year’s revenues and expenses are all taken into account regardless of when cash is
received or paid,



These statements report the City’s net assets (shown as net position} and any changes to those
assets. The change in assets tells the reader whether the City’s financial position as a whole has
diminished or improved. Non-financial information such as changes in the tax base and the
condition of the capital assets will also need to be evaluated.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are divided into two kinds of
activities:

Governmental activities - Basic services are reported here. These include police, fire, public
works, parks departments and the general administration. These are financed mainly by
property taxes, franchise fees and state and federal grants.

Business-type activities - Water, Sewer, Gas, Garbage and Civic Center department fees are
reported here. These fees will cover most, if not all, of the expenses of these activities.

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds

On page 7 is a comparative summary of the City’s operations by fund type. Some funds are
required by state law or bonds covenants. Many of the other funds established to contro! and
manage money for particular projects or to meet certain legal responsibilities are set up by the
City Board. The two kinds of funds the City uses are governmental and proprietary and do not
use the same accounting approaches.

Governmental funds - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in this fund type, which
show the money flowing in and out of those {unds and then the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. These funds are reported using the modified accrual accounting
method, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to
cash. These fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the general government
operations and the basic service it provides. This information also helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources available to be used in the near future to finance the
City’'s programs. The differences between governmental activities and governmental funds are
described in reconciliations adjacent to the fund financial statements. The detail financial
statements for the governmental funds are on pages!4-18.

Proprietary funds - When the customers are charged for the provided services these services
are generally reported as proprietary funds. These funds are also known as “business-type
activities” or “enterprise funds”. These funds are reported in the same way all activities are
reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s
enterprise funds arc the same as the business-type activities reported in the government-wide
statements bul provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The detail
financial statements for the propriety funds are on pages 19-22.
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Even though grant income remained fairty strong in 2013, the City’s governmental activities
continue to be primarily funded by sources other than property taxes, which made up only 32%
of the total non-grant governmental revenues before interfund transfers. The major expense
activities were public safety and streets, which respectively comprise 53% and 20% of total
governmental expenses. Providing the services our residents expect is our continued
commitment,

While business-type activities are accounted for similarly to businesses and are primarily
supported by user fees, the City attempts to keep these fees as low as possible.

THE CITY'S FUNDS

As the year ended, the city’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$9,780,000, which is $1,425,000 greater than last year’s total of $8,355.000. The primary
reasons for the increase were in the areas of property and sales taxes collected, as well as
transfers from other funds. These increases in revenues were partially offset by increased
expenses of $379.000.

The City’s budget is prepared according to Mississippi law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursement and encumbrances. One of the
most significant budgeted funds is the General Fund.

During 20135, the budget for this fund was amended as shown on pages 51-54. All
recommendations for a change come from the department heads to the City Clerk for review
before going to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen for consideration. The City does not allow
budget changes that modify line items within any department without Board approval.

The General Fund is closely monitored for possible revenue shortfalls or over spending, since it
supports so many departments. The General Fund's original budgeted revenues were
£12,005,000; with the final budgeted amount being $12,670,000; and with $11,248.000 in
actual revenue collections. The shortage was caused primarily by the decision not to pursue
transfers from other City funds. The General Fund’s original budgeted expenditures of
$14,102,000 were amended to $18,179.000, with actual expenditures of $10,267,000. The main
reason for the shortage was the postponing of capital projects and the general reduction of
budgeted expenses for all departments.
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CITY OF BATESVILLE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activitics Total
ASSETS
Cash h 262,854 $ 1,675.168 % 1.938.022
Temporary cash investments 6,590,650 8,363,499 14,954,149
Aecounts receivable, net 311,798 157,490 469,288
Current portion of loans receivable (Note 4) 256,477 - 256,477
Intergovernmental receivables 1.181.208 248,187 1,429395
Properly and franchise tax reeeivable 3.684240 244,257 3,928.497
Inventory - 432.578 432,578
Prepaid items 22,569 17,558 40.127
Due from other funds {Nole 8) 11,178 (11.178) -
Restricted assets, (Note 4)
Cash 2,271,524 - 2,271,524
Temporary cash investments 26,160 419973 446,133
Leans receivable. non-cuerent {Note 4) 652,505 - 652,505
Capital asscts, net of accumulated
depreciation (Note 6) 14,052,295 23,835,475 37.887.970
Total assets 29,323,458 35,383,207 64,706,665
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
P. E. R. S. of Mississippi 1,316,044 391,426 1,707 470
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabie and accrued expensas 899,493 991,365 1,890,858
Current portion of iong-term debt (Note 7) 243,080 598,002 841,092
Liabilities payahbls from restricted assets:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 16,627 - 16,8627
Builder compliance bonds and seized funds held 18,317 - 18,317
Customer deposits - 419,973 419,673
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds payable 75,000 3,055,000 3,130,000
Noies and leases payable 223,908 1,450,906 1,674,808
Compensated absences 325,671 112,807 438,478
Net pensicn liability 10,308,662 3,062,986 13,369,648
Tolal liabilities 12,108,768 9,691,033 21,799,801
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Property tax reeeivables not eurrently available 3.507.045 238,825 3.745870
Intergovernmental reccivables nol currently available 115,876 - 115,876
P, L. RS, of Mississippi 276,820 82,267 359,087
Unecamed renlal deposits - 2,695 _ 2,695
Total deferred inflow of resources 3.899.741 323,787 4,223 528

See accompanying notes to financial statements



CITY OF BATESVILLE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - continued
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt S 14,510,297 S 18,731,773 $ 33,242,070
Restricted for:
Economic development 1,727,258 - 1,727,258
Tourism development 1,022,108 - 1,022,108
Debt service 2,143,344 - 2,143,344
Capital improvements 81,695 - 81,695
QOther 26,160 - 26,160
Unrestricted (4,879,869} 7,028,040 2,148,171
Total Net position S 14,630,993 § 25,759,813 $ 40,390,806

See accompanying notes to financial statements



CITY OF BATESYILLE, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Program Revenues

Net {Expense) Revenue and

Operating Capital Changes in Nel Assets
Charges for Grants and Granis and  Gevernmental  Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activilies Activities Total
FUNCTIONS/IPROGRAMS
Governmental acuviugs.
General povernment £ 1320932 % 175,696 % 4886 S 5718 % (1134630 % - %5 (113463
City courl 261,395 5,871 - - 1255524y 255,524,
Police 4,006,935 489.654 - 13,425 (3,503,8560) - {1,303 856
Fire 1,739,183 48,691 - 70.000 {1,620,492) 11,620,492)
Streets 2,178,141 - - B0.353 (2,057,788) {2.097.788)
Sanitation 365,797 12,250 - - (353.547) (3533.547)
Library 303 494 6,169 - - (257.725) - (297.725)
Parks 362429 22,227 360,880 20,678 - 2,678
Code 271938 41,979 - (229,959) {229,059)
[<conomic development 64,879 - - (64 .879) - (64.879)
interest an long-term debi 50,266 - - (50,4660 - (50,466)
Total governmental acuivilies 10,925 989 802,537 4886 330376 (9,588,190} - (9,58R.190)
Business-type Activitizs
Walar 1.337.034 2,207,686 124,654 . 9935286 993,286
Sewer 1.858.821 1,491,834 - 4759991 - 113,004 113,004
Gas 2.549.779 3,933,343 127258 - 1,510,822 1,510 822
Multi-purpese Building 1.001.668 137,379 - - 1864,286) (864.2K9)
Solid waste 306,760 342,536 - - 15,776 35,770
Total business-1ype aclivities 7,034,082 8,112,778 - 731,903 - 1,790,599 1,790.599
Total pnmaly government § 17980071 S 8915315 § 4,886 5 1,262,279 (9,588,190} 1,790,599 17,797,591
General revenues
Property taxes 3,432,820 236,121 3.668.941
Sales and Lounsm laxes 5,431,776 - 5433776
Franchise laxes 312,221 - 312220
Other taxes and other 522372 31,636 554 (08
Unrestiieted interest income 102,380 39,221 141.601
Gain (Loss) on disposiion of capital assels 10,366 (121,292) (110,926}
Transfers. ned 1.086,398 (1,086 308) -
Tolal general revenues and transters 10,900,333 (900,712 9,9949.621
change in nel position 1,312,143 889 887 2.202,030
Net position, beginning 22 498 446 27.336,155 a0 034 601
Adjustment for initial recogniuon cf net pension lability {Nole 9) (RB.971.609) (2,666,229 (11,637 K38
Correction of prior error {Noie 12) 1207.987) 1207987y
Net position, ending s 14630093 § 25759813 % 40390806

See accompanying noles to financial statements.
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CITY OF BATESVILLE
BALANCE SHEETS-GOVERNMENTAIL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

General Tourism
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash b 249114 5 -
Tempaorary eash investments 6,339,030 -
Police lines raceivable 310,901 -
Interest receivable - -
Current portion of loans reecivable - -
Franchise and other tax receivable 104,803 -
Property tax receivable 3,579,433 -
Due (to) from governmentul funds 29,105 -
Due (Lo) from enlerprise funds 6.734 -
Intergovernmental reccivables 9K2.241 [98.967
Cash-restricted 1,099 R23 442
Temporary cash investments-restricied - -
Non-current loans receivable - -
Inventory - -
Total assets $ 11,824,464 $1,022.449
LIABILITES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5 896,200 $ 341
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - -
Bullder compliance bonds and seized funds heid 3,099 -
'otal liabilitics %99.308 341
DEFERRED INFLLOWS OF RESOURSES
Property taxes nol currently available 3.507.043 -
Intergovernmental reeeivables not currently available | 15,870 -
Palice fine receivables not currently available 206,454 -
Current portion of loans/leases not currently availabic - -
Total deferred infllows of resources 3,919,373 -
Total liabilities and delerred inflows of resources 4.818,683 341
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - -
Restricted - 1,422,108
Conmumited 17,000 -
Assigned 935,000 -
Usnrestricled 6,053,781 -
Total tund balances 7.005,781 1,022,108
Twtal liabilities, deferred inAlows, and (und balances 5 11,824,464 $ 1,022,449

See accompanying notes to linancial stalements.

Non-Major
Governmental
Funds

3 13.740

31.620

#97

256.477
{29,105)

1.444,943

26.160

345,947

% 2,090.679

Total
Governmental
Fuuds

$  262.854
6.590,650
110,901
897
256,477
164 803
3,579,435
6,734
1,181,208
2,271,524
26,160
345,947

% 14,937.392

h3 273 M) K96,825

16.627 16,627

15218 18,317

32,120 931,769

- 3,307,043

- 115,876

- 206,454

106.455 306.455

306,435 4,225,830

338,575 5,137,599

345,947 345,947

1,331,561 2,333,669

61,867 78,867

12.729 947.729

- 0,053,781

1,752,104 9,779,993

3 2,090,679 $ 14,937,592
14



CITY OF BATESVILLE

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Total fund balance-total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital asscts used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

Receivables that are not collected within 60 days of year end, as
designated by the City, are not deemed available to pay for

current-pertod expenditures and therefore are deferred by the funds

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds

Prepaid expenses are not financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the funds

Change in accounting to recognize initial net pension liability (Note 9)
Correction of 2014 error (Note 12)

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year that are not
expensed in the Statement of Activities

Pension expenses in the Statement of Activities that do not require the
use of current financial resources

Value of donated land in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current financial resources

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial stalements.

$ 9,779,993

13,893,684

909,469

(865,894)

22,568
(8,971,609)

(207,987)

188,709

(484,538)

366,598

$ 14,630,993



CITY OF BATESVILLE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

REVENUES

Propery taxes, net

Road and bridge taxes

I.icenses und pennits

Intergovernmental revenues:

Federal grants
State shared revenues,

Crants
Sales lux
Liquor priviledge tax
Fire protection
Gasoline tax
[omestead reimburscment
Other

Taurism tax

Franchise tax

Poliee fines

Purks and recreacion

Fire department revenue-local

Loan colleclions

[nterest income

Renis

Contributions

Reductian for uncollectables

Sale ol City assets

Other

Tatal revennes

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General govermnent

City eourt

Police

Frre

Streets

Sanitaton

Library

Parks

Code

Economie development
Dreht service:

Principal

[nterest

Paying agenl Ices

Total expenduures

Excess (deficiency) nf revenucs
over (under) expenditures

continued

FUND BALANCES--GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Non-Major Total
CGeneral ‘Tourism Governmental Goverhmental

Fund Fund Funds Fundy
$ 34323820 ) - 3 - 3,432,820
383,760 - - 385,760
122.230 - - 122.230
93.778 - - 93,778
70,000 - - 70.000
4,237,854 - - 4,237 854
10,350 - - 10,350
40.608 - - 40,608
6,946 - - 6.946
125 515 - - 125315
3,722 - - 3,722
- 1,195,922 - 1,195,922
312,221 - - 312,221
232970 - - 232,970
17,863 - - 17.863
8,073 - - 8,073
38.226 329 16,635 35,190
44934 - 207,987 252,921
4,886 - - 4 886
260,483 - 25.127 285,612
9,449,241 1,196,251 249,749 10,895,241
938.541 1,122 16,048 975,711
161434 - - 261,434
3,968,751 - 53332 4,022,083
1,631,766 - - 1,631.766
2,132,775 - - 2,132,775
370,944 - - 370,944
276,395 - - 276,365
303,339 - - 305,339
257,740 - - 257,740
- 64,879 - 64.879
- - 224,173 224,173
- - 49 810 A0 R10
- - 650 656
10,163,683 66,001 344,019 10,573,705
(714,444} 1,130,250 94,270) 321,536

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF BATESVILLE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES--GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Non-Major Total
General Tourism Governmental Guvernmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transters frem other funds §  1.890.398 h) - ) 75.200 h 1.971,598
Transfers to other funds (79.644) (810,000) - (889,644)
Sale of assets 13,200 - 8,742 21,942
Long term debt issued - - -
Net other financing sources (uscs) 1,829,954 ___(810,000) 83,942 1,103,896
Net change in lund halances 1,115,510 320,230 (10,328} [,425.432
Fund balances, heginning 5.890,271 701,858 1,762,432 8.354.361
Fund balances. ending §  7.005,78l 3 1,022,108 § 1,752,104 3 v,779,993

Sce accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF BATESVILLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Net changes in {und balances — total governmental funds $  1,425432

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the stalement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,

in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated

over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in

the current period. (251,994)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are nol reported as revenues in the funds. 4,560

The proceeds of long-term debt provides financial resources to governmental

funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net

assets. Repayment of debt principal is expenditure in the governmental

funds. but the repayment reduces long-terin liability in the statement of net

assets, This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment

of long-term debt and related items, 63,376

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal vear that are not
expensed in the Statement of Activities. 188,709

Pension expenses in the Statement of Activities that do not require the
use of current financial resources. (484,338)

Value of donated land in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
correct financial resources. 366.598

Change in net position of governmental activities $  1.312143

Sce accompanying notes to {inancial statcments

RECEIVED 3
MAY 2 3 2016



ASSETS
ash
Temporaty cash investiments
Aceounts recervable, ner
Current partion of loans recervable [Note 4)
Itergavernmental recelvabies
Property and {ranchuse tax receivable
Tnventary
Due Grom (o) atlser [unds [Nate §)
Prepaid items
Reshicted assels, (Note 4]
Cash
Temporary cash invesiments
Cupifal assets, net of accunuiated
deprectarion (MNate &)

Total assels

NEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

PERS retirement conlribulions

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accruad expenses

Current portion of long-lerm debt (Nate 7)

Liabilities payable from reslricled assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Builder compliance bonds and seized funds held

Custemer deposits
Nen-current liabilities:

Nel pension liabilily

Bonds payable

Nates and leases payable

Compensated absences

Total biabibuies

DEFERRED INELOW OF RESOURCLS

PERS 1elirement

Unearned rental deposits

Property tax receivables not currently available

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt
Restricted for:
Economic development
Tourism development
Oeht service
Capital improvements
Other
Unrestricted

Tatal Net Position

See accompanying notes ta flinancial statements.

CITY OF BATESVILLE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Water and Gas Civic Center Non-Major
Sewer Fund Fund Furd Sanitation Fund Total

§ 873,357 $ 192,350 S 358,224 5 210,637 $ 1,675,168
2,560,259 5,803,240 - 8,363,499
B4,366 65,981 7,143 157,490
222914 16,417 8,856 248,187

- 244,257 244,257

101,555 331,023 432,578
(13,107) 1,363 - 566 {11,178)
4,128 1,644 11,786 17,558
184,180 235,793 419,973
14,192,849 1,742,922 7,899,904 23,835,675
18,210,501 8,391,333 8,563,027 218,346 35,383,207
233,918 97,334 60,174 391,426
761,778 132,304 45,227 52,054 891,365
138,002 460,000 - 598,002
184,180 235,793 - 419,973
1,839,664 748,700 474,622 3,062,386

. 3,055,000 3,055,000

1,450,900 - 1,450,900
61,669 34,819 16,319 - 112,807
4,436,193 1,151,616 4,051,168 52,056 9,691,033
438,410 20,109 12,748 82,267

- - 2,635 2,695

238,825 238,825

45,410 20,109 254,268 323,787
12,603,947 1,742,922 4,384,904 18,731,773
1,354,869 5,574,020 {67,139 166,290 7,028,040

5 13,958,816 5 7,316,942 5 4,317,765 5 166,290 5 25,759,813
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Water
And Civie Non-Major Total
Sewer Gas Center Sunitatyon Fnierprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services:
Water sales § 0 2,146.946 b - $ - 3 - 2,146,946
Sewer sales 1,466,430 - - - 1,466,430
(ias sales - 3,876,981 - 3876981
Facility fees - 134,185 - 134 (85
Sanitation lees - . - 334,675 314,675
Other 95837 72,032 3,144 8,721 180,674
Total operating revenues 3,709,213 3.949,903 137,379 343,396 8.139.891
OPERATING EXPENSES
Natural gas purchases - 1,707,798 - 1,707,798
Marerials and supplies 264,145 85,381 20,827 370.403
Salarigs anel benelits 1,127,340 476.508 278,252 - 1,882,100
Prolessional services 183,596 81,969 32,842 106 760 605,167
Promoler fees & facilily expenses - - 34,568 - 34,568
Litilites and telephone 341,858 33,330 141,510 - 516,708
Depreciation and amortization BI8,737 91,037 275872 - 1185646
Repairs 282.064 14.957 33,396 - 130417
Insurance 85,736 37,948 53.369 163,053
Renlts 17,561 556 3.990 - 22,107
Other 210,280 52,525 16,898 - 289703
l.ess cupilalized expenscs _._ (s136l) (16.240) (67,801)
‘T'otal operating expenses 1289800 2,549,779 £G3 524 306,760 7,039 869
Operating income (loss) 419407 _ 1400024 {736,145) 30,636 1,100,022
NON-OPERATING REVENLUE (EXPENSES)
Grant income 604,645 127,258 - - 731,903
Property faxes - - 236,121 - 236,121
llomestead exemplion - - 4523 - 4.523
Inletest income 15,009 23,048 264 39221
Interesl expense {27.361) (107,499} - {134,860}
Paying apenl lees - - (645) - 1645}
Miscellaneous R - . - - - -
Total non-operating revenues
{expenses) 592063 151,206 132,764 - 876,263
Income {Joss) belore
conlributions & transfers 1,011,700 1,551.330 (623.381) 36,636 1.976.285
Transfers from other funds - 10,634 910.000 - 520634
Transfers to other funds (10.634) (1,546,398} (50,000 (2,007,032)
Change in net position 1,001,066 (384,434) 286,619 {13,264) B89 K87
‘lotal net pasition, beginning 14,559.117 8,353,095 4,444 289 179 654 27,536,155
Tnitinal recognivon of net pension lability (Note 9) __(1.601,367) (651,719) (413.143) - (2,666,229}
Tolal net position. ending $ 13958816 5 7316942 F 4317765 3 166,290 § 25759813

CITY OF BATESVILLE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS-PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Sec accompanying noles to linancial slatements.



CITY OF BATESVIILLE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2115

Water
Amd Civic Non-Magjor Total
Sewer Gus Center Sanitation Enwerprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers and users $ 3,802,649 $ 3,978,583 S 143,263 $ 348,436 5 8,272,981
Payments to suppliers for goods and
services (642,993) {1,966,512) {362,264) {305,335) (3,277,104)
Payments to employees for services (1,061,544) (442,178) (259,940) - (1,763,662}
Net cash provided {used) by
aperating activities 2,098,112 1,569,893 (478,941) 43,151 3,232,215
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers fram other funds - 10,634 254,154 37,983 302,771
Transfers to other funds {49,505) {1,946,398) - (50,000} (2,045,903)
Other - 12,066 - - 12,066
Net cash provided (used) by
non-capital financing activities {49,505} {1,923,698) 254,154 (12,017) {1,731,066)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Grant proceeds 504,136 110,841 - - 619,977
Taxes received - 240,407 - 240,407
Sale of assets 12,183 - - - 12,183
Acquisition and canstruction of
capital assets (2.758,005) (194,355) {25,579) - {2,977,839)
Proceeds from capital debt - - - - -
Principal paid on capital debt [141,666) - (547,702) - (689,368)
Interest paid an capital debt {27,463) - (104,345) - {131,808)
Transfers from other funds for capita
assets - - 655,846 - 655,846
Transfers to other funds for capital
assets - - - -
Donations and other - - - - -
Net cash provided {used) by
capital financing activities {2.405,815) 183,514) 218,627 - ___{2,270,?02)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Reductions {additions) to investments 2,296,872 4,062,097 - - 6,358,969
Interest income 15,009 23,048 264 - 39,221
Net cash provided (used) by
investing activities 2,311,881 4,086,045 264 - 6,398,190
Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash eguivalents 1,954,673 3,648,726 (5,896) 31,134 5,628,637
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 1,663,123 2,583,257 404,120 179,503 4,830,003
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 3,617,796 $ 6,231,983 $ 398,224 S 210,637 S 10,458,640

continued

See accompanying notes to financial statemenlts.
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
[USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
QOperating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating
incame (loss) to net cash provided
{used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Non-cash pension expense

Loss on disposition of equipment

(Increase) decrease in accounts
receivable

(Increase) decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items

Increase {decrease) in accounts
payable and accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) in customer
deposits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets
through accounts payables

See wecompanying noles Lo financial slalements

CITY OF BATESYILLE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS-continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Water
And Civic Non-Major Tolal
Sewer Gas Center Sannation LEnlerprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
S 419,407 $1,400,124 [756,145) $ 36,636 $1,100,022
B18B,737 91,037 275,872 - 1,185,646
53,785 19,756 14,053 87,598
121,364 - - - 121,364
84,589 24,765 5,724 5,090 120,168
4,896 53,058 - 57,994
586,483 (22,802) {18,605) 1,425 546,501
B, 847 3,915 160 - 12,522
1,678,705 169,769 277,204 6,515 2,132,153
62,098,112 51,569,893 (478,941) $ 43,151 $3,232,215
S 651,863 S 4,200 - S - $ 656,063
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Note [.

CITY OF BATESVYILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Batesville, Mississippi (City) have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The City’s reporting entity applies all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements, Proprietary
funds and similar component units apply Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict
(GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The City does not apply FASB
pronouncements or APB opinions issued after November 30, 1989. The more
significant of the government’s accounting policies are described below.,

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Batesviile is located in Panola County, Mississippi, was incorporated in
1866, and operates under an elected Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of
government. The City provides the following services to the citizenry: general
administration: water, sewer, gas, and garbage disposal; police and fire protection;
economic development; streel repair and library services. The primary sources of
revenues are property taxes, utility billings and sales taxes. Various criteria are
applied in order to determine the various funds and activities which should be
reported as part of the City. Such criteria include oversight responsibility by the
elected officials such as decision-making authority, accountability to the City, legal
and fiscal responsibility, and inter-agency relationships. All agencies meeting the
above criteria are included in the financial statements of the City. As required by
generally accepted aecounting principles, these financial statements present the
government and its component units, entitics for which the government is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and so data
from these units are combined with data of the primary government. Each blended
component unit has a September 30 year end.

The Batesville Public Improvement Corporation is a non-profit organization formed
in 1991 to construct and finance the new Batesville Library. The Corporation
issued $610,000 in “certificates of participation” whieh was used. along with a
$200,000 library grant obtained by the City, to construct and furnish a new library
facility. The City’s Mayor and Board of Aldermen also serve as the Corporation’s
Board of Directors, and the City was the Corporation’s designated agent responsible
for all phases of construction. During 1998, the Corporation incurred $1,921,000 in
notes payable to a commercial bank in order to fund the construction of a new post
office. The building was leased to the Postal Service in 1998 and the lease was
accounted for as a lease-sale. For financial reporting purposes, the Corporation is
reported as a blended component unit as it it were part of the City’s operations. The
Corporation has no assets, liabilities or income.

RECEiviey
MAY 23 20
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Note 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the
statement of changes in net position) report information on all non-fiduciary activities
of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activily has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or
elimination of internal activity (between or within funds). However, internal
eliminations do not include utility services provided to City departments.

Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. Proprietary and fiduciary
fund financial statements and financial statements of City component units also report
using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not
climinated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses

are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants
are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible
within the current period or soon cnough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
fiscal year.
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Note |.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: sales and use taxes, tourism
taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes and intergovernmental revenues. In general,
other revenues are recognized when cash is received.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements inciudes revenues
and expenses related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal
operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services.
Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include
administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and
expenses are classified as non-operating in the {inancial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. See Note
5 for information describing restricted assets,

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions typically
are financed. The City reports the following governmental funds:

a) General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. |t
accounts for all financial resources of the City’s general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b) Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue funds account for revenue sources
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

¢} Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds account for the servicing of gencral
long-term debt.

d) Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition of
fixed assets or construction of major capital projects (other than those financed
by proprietary funds).

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
The City reports the following proprietary funds:

a) Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business,
primarily through user charges or where the City has decided that the
determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is
necessary for management accountability.
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Note [.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent.

a}  Agency Funds — Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not present results
of operations or have a measurement focus.

Major Funds

For 20135, the City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund- reports as the primary fund of the City. This fund is used to account for
all financial resources not reported in other funds.

Tourism Tax Fund - This fund accounts for the collection and use of the City’s
Tourism Tax on motels and restaurants. The assets of the fund are used for the
promotion of the City of Batesville.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water and Sewer Fund- accounts for the operating activities of the City’s water, sewer
and sewage treatment facility utility services.

(fas Fund- accounts for the operating activities of the City’s natural gas utility

services.

Multi-Purpose Building Fund- accounts for the operating activities of the City’s multi-
purpose building. This facility is used to both promote the City and local business
enterprises, and provide a place for civic and cultural events,

. Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market. The City
considers highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventories and Prepaids

Inventories of the enterprise funds are stated at cost as determined by the moving
average method.

The other governmental funds record inventoriable items as expenses when purchased,
thus inventories of supplies on hand are not reported as assets.

Prepaids record payments to vendors that benefit future reporting periods and are also

reported on the consumption basis. Both inventories and prepaids are similarly
reported in government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

G. Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization

The City’s property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more
than one year are stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the
government-wide financial statements. The City maintains infrastructure asset records
consistent with all other capital assets. Proprietary and component unit capital assets
are also reported in their respective financial statements. Donated assets are stated at
fair value on the date donated. The City generally capitalizes

assets with cost of $1,000 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially
extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets, are depreciated using the
straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting
gain or loss is recorded in operations.

Following are the estimated useful lives used for computing depreciation:

Building and improvements 10-50 years
Equipment and fixtures 5-10 years
Water and sewerage plant 20-50 years
(Gas system 10-40 years

H. Capitalized Interest

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense
incurred from the date of the borrowing until completion of the project with interest
earned on invested proceeds over the same period. All repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred. [nterest costs charged to operations consist of the following:

Interest cost incurred $ 142,816
Decrease as a result of

capitalizing interest as

a cost of construction 7,946

Interest charges to operations  § 134,870

I. Long-term Debt, Deferred Debt Expense. and Bond Discounts/Premiums

In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, outstanding debi is
reported as liabilities. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying value of refunded debt are capitalized and amortized over the terms of the
respective bonds using a method that approximates the effective interest method.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and

premiums as other financing sources of the current period. lssuance costs are reported
as expenditures.
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Note 1.

J.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Fund Equity

During 2011, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmenial Fund Type Definitions, which established accounting and financial
reporting requirements to improve the usefulness of information about fund balance in
the governmental fund statements by providing clearer, more structured fund balance
classifications and clarifying the definitions of existing governmental fund types.
GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the
fund balance categories listed below.

. Nonspendable fund balance is associated with inventorics, prepaids, long-term
loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale {unless the proceeds
are restricted, committed or assigned).

2. Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for
the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or
through enabling legis!ation.

3. Commiited tund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only
for the specific purposes determined by formal action (ordinance) of the City
Board.

4.  Assigned fund balance classification is intended to be used by the government
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed. Assigned amounts are determined by the City Board.

5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the government's
general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other
classifications.

City management implemented this statement by performing a detailed review of each
governmental fund's activities, fund sources and plans.

The City's Board is its highest level of decisions making authority, and fund balance
commitments may be established, modified or rescinded by formal Board modification
of the City budgets.

The City Board authorized the City Clerk to assign amounts for vartous purposes
reflected in the City's adopted budgets.

Whenever there are options as to the payment of City expenses, it was determined that
the order of the funds used would be:

1. Restricted

2. Committed

3. Assigned

4 Unassigned

. Compensated Employee Absences

Employees can accumulate vacation days and sick days up to a maximum at which
point any additional days arc lost. Employces are completely vested in vacation
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Note 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

days up to the maximum in that they can take them or be paid for them upon
termination. Sick days may be taken only for bona fide sickness and are lost upon
termination of employment.

The City acctues compensated absences when vested. The current portions of the
Governmental Funds® compensated absences liabilities are recorded as accrued
liabilities. The current and noncurrent portions are recorded in the government-wide
financial statements. The amount of vacation recognized as expense is the amount
earned during the year.

Risk Management

The City carries commercial insurance with respect to risks including, but not limited
to, property damage and personal injury. Insurance coverage remains relatively
constant, and settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current
year or the prior three years.

. Estimates and Assumptions

A number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of revenues, expense,
expenditures, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities were
used to prepare these financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

. Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January |. Taxes are
levied on October 1 and are due and payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied
October | become delinquent February 1 of the following year. Delinquent taxes are
considered fully collectible and therefore no allowance for uncollectible taxes is
provided.

. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or
expenditure until then. The City has two items that meet this criterion, contributions
made to the pension plan in the 2015 fiscal year and its proportionate share of
Mississippi Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) changes in actuarial
assumptions and differences in expected and actual experience, resulting from the
implementation of GASB Statement 68. In addition to liabilities, the statement of
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as revenue until then. The City has several items that meet the criterion
for this category — intergovernmental and property taxes receivable, and deferrals
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Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

of pension expense that result from the implementation of GASB Statement 68.

BUDGET POLICY

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

A. Prior to September 30, the City Clerk submits to the Mayor and Aldermen a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October |. The
operating budget includes proposed expenses and expenditures and the means of
financing them.

B. Public notice is given of the City’s budget meetings being open to the public, so that a
public hearing is conducted on the budget.

C. The budget as submitted is reviewed by the Mayor and Aldermen and necessary
revisions are made to the budget. Then the budget is approved prior to September 30.

D. The budget is formally revised during July of each year or anytime a deficit is
indicated.

E. Budgetary comparisons are employed by management as a management control device
during the year for all funds.

F. Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

Mississippi laws require that municipalities budget on a modified-cash basis. Claims that
have been incurred prior to the end of the year and that are paid within 30 days are
recorded under the accrual basis. Prior year claims that are paid after 30 days revert to the
cash basis. All revenue is accounted for under the cash basis. The required budgetary
basis is therefore not considered a generally accepted accounting principle. Governmental
accounting requires that the “budget to actual” statements be prepared according to
budgetary laws and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and fund

balance is prepared according to the modified-accrual basis (GAAP). The major
reconciling items between the budgetary and GAAP presentations are presented on the
“budget to actual™ statements.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City follows the practice of pooling the excess cash of all unrestricted funds, and
investing the total in the most advantageous manner. Earnings of these investments are
allocated among the participating funds based upon their relationship to the total
investment. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by statutes.
These restrictions are summarized below.
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Note 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS-continued

Custodial Credit Risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s
deposits may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in
the possession of an outside party.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk
of adverse interest rate changes.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s
investment in a single issuer.

The City’s investment policy 10 address the above risks is to only invest in short term bank
certificates of deposit or bank savings accounts. In addition, all such certificates of
deposits or bank demand deposits are to be only with financial institutions that are
members of the statewide Collateral Pool Program.

The City had deposits that exceeded 5% of the total City deposits in two different banks.
Depaosits

The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions is now held in the name
of the State Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature.
Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through a collateral pool
administrated by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public
funds must pledge securitics as collateral against those deposits, In the event of failure of a
financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State
Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation.

Category | - Insurcd
Category 2 - Collateralized by the state public funds guaranty pool
Category 3 - Uncollateralized

Category
Balance per Bank 1 2 3
$ 19,832,000 $1,023,000 318,809,000 § 0

These cash balances differ {from the amounis shown in the financial statements because of
in-transit items.

Investments

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. The City may invest its surplus funds in certificates of deposits, any bonds
or direct obligations of the United States of America or the State of Mississippi, or in the
bonds of any county, municipality or school district of Mississippi provided such bonds
have been approved by a reputable bond attorney or have been validated by a decree of the
Chancery Court.
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Note 3.

Note 4.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS-continued

Market value of the City’s investments (bank savings accounts) was determined by the
specific identification method based upon current yields of comparable saving account
deposits.

RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE

Enterprise Receivables

Significant receivables include amounts due from customers primarily for utility services.
These receivables are due within one year. The enterprise funds report accounts
receivable net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of
uncollectibles. The allowance amount is estimated using accounts receivables past due
morte than 60 days. Related amounts are shown in the following table.

Water and Civic
Sewer Gas Center Sanitation Total
Accounts receivable $ 282358 §$272227 $§ 490 § 20,941 $576,016

Less: allowance for
unicollectible accounts (197.992) (206.246) {490 (13.798) (418,526}

Net accounts receivable $84366 $ 65981 _§ 0 % 7,143 $157.490

Uncollectible bad accounts
or (recoveries) netted with
revenues $ 181002 § (7,014) $ 2361 § (860) $ 12,589

Significant receivables include amounts due from customers for utility services that are
based on monthly cycle billings. These accounts receivables and related revenues are
reported net of estimated uncollectibles. Customer deposits are obtained to assist in the
collection of such receivables. Unbilled revenues at September 30. 2015 were
approximately:

Water and Sewer $ 289,000
Gas $ 124,000
Sanitation $ 24,000

Tax and Intergovernmental Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, the receivables and related revenues include
all amounts due the City regardless of when cash is received. In the governmental fund
financial statements, the revenues are offset and revenue recognition deferred by the
amounts not received within 60 days of year end. Intergovernmental receivables are
composed of:

RECEIVED .
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Note 4. RECEIVABLES. UNCOLLECTIBLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE-continued

Sales and tourism taxes $ 938,320
Homestead exemption 124,732
Grants receivable 319,684

County reimbursement and other

46,659

$ 1,429,395

Lease and Loan Receivables

During 1998, the City completed construction of the new post office building and entered
into a lease-sale with the U.S, Postal Service. Minimum lease payments receivable at
September 30, 2015 were:

Principal Interest Total

Portion Portion Lease
2016 $ 175010 §& 32977 § 207,987
2017 190,479 17,508 207,987
2018 101.464 2,530 103,994

$ 466953 § 53015 § 519968

The grant proceeds of previous CDBG programs are being used to promote industrial
growth by making loans to local concerns. All loan repayments will continue to be
restricted to the Economic Development Program. Summaries of the gross loans at
September 30, 2015 are:

Original Termm Due Date  Interest Rate Loan Balance

Loan #1 [0 years 2011 3.00% § 119,953
Loan #2 5 vears 2012 3.00% 41,128
Loan #3 10 years 2019 3.00% 414,591
Loan #4 10 years 2022 3.00% 51,869
Loan #5 10 years 2022 3.00% 255,592
883,133
Current portion, before allowance (345.887)
l.ong-term portion, before allowance $ 537,246

The estimated total amounts receivable for future years are approximately:

2016 § 345,887
2017 85,133
2018 87,079
2019 89.642
2020 61,980
Thereafter 213412

§ 883,133
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Note 4. RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE-continued

Current Long-term Total i
Gross loans $ 345,887 $ 537,246 $ 883133
Allowance for uncollectibility {264,420) (191,299) {455.719)

$ 81467 § 345,947 $ 427414

The City also administers a program that provided funds to rehabilitate substandard housing
for low income individuals. A portion of each loan is forgiven each year that the eligible
party occupies the residence. The intent of the program was that loan payment was not
expected vnless there was a balance due upon the death or abandonment by the eligible
party.

Total City loans consisted of the following:

Current Non-current Total
Post Office $ 175010 § 291,943 § 466,953
Economic development 345 887 537,246 883,133
Home program 0 54.855 54.855
520,897 884,044 1,404,941
Allowance for uncollectability (264.420) (231,539) {495,959)

$ 256477 § 652505 §_ 908982

Management monitors the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses in order to maintain it
at a level deemed adequate to absorb potential losses. Management’s determination of the
allowance is based on the evaluation of the loan portfolio, past experience, current economic
conditions and other relevant factors. Additions to the allowance account arc charged
agatnst earnings. l.oans which in the opinion of management are uncollectible are charged
to the allowance account, For 20135, the City had an allowance for |oan losses of $495,959

The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans at September 30,

! 5.Impaired loans without a valuation allowance $ 119,953
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 455,720
Total impaired loans $ 575,673
Average investment in impaired loans $ 576,734
Interest income recognized on impaired loans 3 566

34



Note 4, RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE-continued

No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with impaired loans.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

Balance at beginning of year $ 498,464
Payments on reserved loans 0
Adjustments for home loans (2,503)

Balance at end of year $ 495,959

Note 5. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain assets are restricted for construction funded through long-term debt, federal grants
and debt service. In addition, certain assets are held as deposits and are only potentially
available for City use,

Water and
General Sewerage Gas Other Total

Capital additions  § 0o % 0 % 0 % 966913 § 96913
Customer deposits 0 184,180 235.793 0 419,973
Building compliance

bonds 3,099 0 0 0 3,099
Excess tax collection

and other 0 0 0 75,208 75,208
Tourism 0 0 0 823,482 823,482
Economic development 0 0 0 |,298.982 1,268,982

$ 3,099 $184,180 § 235793 $2,294.585 2,717,657
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Note 6.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following table provides a summary of changes in capital assets during 2015:

MNot Depreciated

Depreciated

Construction Buildings Furniture
In and and
Land Progress Improvements Infrastructure  Euipment Total
Governmental Activities
Balance, 9/30/14 $ 1,444533 § 47,410 $ 6,271,809 §22,592,747 § 6,701,119 § 37,057,618
Increases 380,123 477,650 54,495 452,176 241,241 § 1,605,585
Decreases - - - - (362,986) (362,986)
Transfers - - - - 2,500 2,500
Balance, 9/30/15 1,824,656 524,960 6,326,304 23,044,923 6,581,874 38,302,717
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance, 5/30/14 - - 2,970,172 14,839,951 5,309,803 23,119,926
Increases - - 202,870 893,972 382,355 1,479,197
Decreases - - - - (351,201) (351,201)
Transfers - - - - 2,500 2,500
Balance, 9/30/15 - - 3,173,042 15,733,923 5,343,457 24,250,422
Capital Assets, Net $ 1824656 § 524,960 % 3,153,262 $ 7,311,000 5 1,238,417 § 14,052,295
Business type Activities
Balance, 9/30/14 3 438,500 & - 510,699,547 §$ 29,550,633 § 2,772,824 $ 43,461,504
Increases - 543,134 4,647 2,274 231 155,928 2,977,940
Decreases - - - (315,642) {63,539) (379,181)
Transfers - - - - (2,500) (2,500)
Balance, 9/30/15 438,500 543,134 10,704,194 31,509,222 2,862,713 46,067,763
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance, 9/30/14 - - 2,692,174 16,480,823 2,111,578 21,284,575
Increases - - 275,193 741,659 168,794 1,185,646
Decreases - - - (224,009) (21,624) {245,633)
Transfers - - - - (2,500} (2,500)
Balance, 9/30/15 - - 2,967,367 16,998,473 2,256,248 22,222,088
Capital Assels, Net $ 438,500 $ 543,134 § 7,736,827 § 14,510,748 $ 606,465 §$ 23.835675
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 2,263,156 § 1,068,094 & 10,880,089 $ 21,821,749 § 1,844,882 § 37,887,970
Depreciation expense was charged to City functions as follows:
Governmental Activities Businegss-type Activities
General $ 53,584 Water & Sewer 3 818,737
Police 139,873 QGas 81,037
Code 14,454 Civic Center 275.872
Court 4,122 $ 1.185.646
Fire 188,872
Streets 053,966
Sanitation 1,667
Parks 88,557
Library 32,102
$1,479,197
36
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Note 7. LONG-TERM DEBT

The City's long-term debt is made up of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and
notes payable. General obligation bonds are direct obligations, and pledge the full faith
and credit of the City. Revenue debt is payable solely from the revenues of the
underlying facilities. The City also incurs debt in the form of various notes which are
to be repaid through daily operations.

The City is subject to a general statutory debt limitation under which no city in the state
may incur general obligation bonded indebtedness in the amount which will exceed 15
percent of the assessed value of the taxable property within such city according to the
last completed assessment for taxation.

[n computing general obligation bonded indebtedness for purposes of such 15 percent
limitation, there may be deducted all bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued
for school, water and sewerage systems, gas and light and power purposes and for
construction of special improvements primarily chargeable to the property benefited, or
for the purpose of paying a city’s proportion of any betterment program, a portion of
which is primarily chargeable to the property benefited. However, in no case may a
city contract any indebtedness payable in whole or in part from proceeds of ad valorem
taxes which, when added to all of its outstanding general obligation indebtedness, both
bonded and floating, exceeds 20 percent of the assessed value of the taxable property
within such city.

In arriving at the limitations set forth above, bonds issued for school purposes, bonds
payable exclusively from the revenues of any municipally- owned utility, general
obligation industrial bonds issued under the provisions of Sections 57-1-1 to 57-1-51,
Mississippi Code of 1972, Annotated, Revised 1989, and special assessment
improvement bonds issued under the provisions of Sections 21-41-1 to 21-41-53,
Mississippi Code of 1972, Annotated, Revised 1990, are not included. Also excluded
from both limitations are contract obligations subject to annual appropriations.

The margin for additional debt under the above debt limits as of September 30, 2015 is
approximately:
15% Limit 20% Limit

$15,505.000 $21,845,000
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Note 7. LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended September

30, 2015:
Balance Balance  Due within
9-30-14 Additions Deletions 9-30-15 One vear

Governmental Activities:
Tax Increment Limited

Obligation Bonds $ 210,000 § 0 § 65000 % 145000 § 70,000
Blended Component unit;

Notes Payable Post Office 556,171 0 159,173 396,998 173,090

766,171 0 224,173 541,998 243,090

Compensated absences 341,901 21,533 0 363,434 37,763

Net Pension Liability 0 11,551.983 1,245,321 10,306,662 0

Total Governmental 1.108,0672 11,573,516 1,469,494 11.212.094 280.853

Business-type Activities:
General Obligations Bonds:
Major Enterprise Funds:
Civic Center 3.960.000 0 445,000 3,515,000 460,000

Notes Payable:
Major Enterprise Funds:

Water and Sewer 1,730,568 0 141,666 1,588,502 138,002
Civic Center 102,702 0 102,702 0 0
Total notes payable 1,833,270 0 244,368 1.588.502 138,002
Compensated Absences:
Major Enterprise Fund:
Water and Sewer 64,950 2,435 0 67,385 5,716
Gas 26,795 8,024 0 34,819 0
Civic Center 20,716 1,488 0 22.204 5,886
112,461 11,947 0 124,408 11,602
Net Pension Liability:
Major Enterprise Fund:
Water and Sewer 0 2,061,945 222,281 1,839,664 0
Gas 0 839,163 90,463 748,700 0
Civic Center 0 531,969 57.347 474,622 0
0 3.433.077 370,091 3,062,986 0
Total Business Type 5.905.731 3.445.024 1,059,459 8.291,296 609.604

Total Long-Term Debt ~ § 7,013,803 315,018,340  $ 2,528,953  $19.503,390 3 *890,457

*Includes the current portion of compensated absences and net pension liability.
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Note 7. LONG-TERM DEBT — continued

The annual debt service requirements of long-term debt as of September 30, 2015 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Revenue Bonds Notes and Leases

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $ 70,000 S 6,163 $ 173.090 § 27,001
2017 75,000 3.187 188,469 11,622
2018 0 0 35,439 359
2019 0 0 0 0
2020 0 0 0 0
2021-2025 0 0 0 0
Totals $ 145000 % 9,350 $_396,998 $ 38982
Total Governmental Debt [ssued
Serviced by General Fund
Principal Interest
2016 $ 243,000 § 33,164
2017 263,469 14,809
2018 35,439 359
2019 0 0
2020 0 0
2021-2025 0 0
Totals $ 541998 % 48,332

Business-Type Activities

Notes Payable
Major Enterprise Fund
Water and Sewer

Principal Interest

2016 $ 138,002 $ 30957

2017 123,972 28,478

2018 126,902 25,547

2019 126,977 22,550

2020 104,379 19,798
2021-2025 308,999 71,826
2026-2030 366,684 37,357
2031-2035 202.987 6,549

Total $1,588,902 243,062
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Note 7.

Note 8.

LONG-TERM DEBT — continued

General Obligation Bonds
Major Enterprises Fund
Civic Center Building

Principal Interest

2016 $ 460,000 § 100,800
2017 470,000 89,300

2018 485,000 77,550
2019 500,000 63,000
2020 515,000 48,000
2021-2025 1,085.000 49,050
2026-2030 0 0
2031-2035 0 0
Total 515000 $  427.700

Total Business-Type

Debt Issued
2016 § 598,002 § 131,757
2017 593,972 117,778
2018 611,902 103,097
20109 626,977 85,550
2020 619,379 67,798
2021-2025 1,483,999 120.876
2026-2030 366.684 37,357
2031-2035 202,987 _ 6,549
Total $5,103902 § 670,762

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

During the course of normali operations, the City has numerous transactions between
funds including expenditures and transfers of resources. Transfers and payments within

the reporting entity are substantially for the purposes of subsidizing operating functions,

funding capital projects and assets acquisitions, or maintaining debt service on a routine
basis. Resources are accumulated in a fund or component unit to support and simplify
the administration ol various projects or programs.

The governmental and business type funds financial statements, presented as the

statement of net assets and the statement of activities generally reflect such transactions
as transfers. Balances at September 30, 2013, were:

RECEIvER
MAY 23 2015
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Note 8.

Note 9.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS- continued

Fund
General fund
Tourism
Non-major governmental funds
Water and Sewer fund
Gas fund
Civic Center fund
Non-major business-type fund

Transfers In

Transfers Qut

$ 1,896,398 § 75200
0 810,000

75,200 0

0 10,634

10,634 1,946,398
910,000 0

0 50,000

$ 2802237 § 28927232

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 2015

arising from these transactions were as follows:

Fund
General fund
Non-major governmental funds
Water and Sewer fund
Gas fund
Civic Center fund
Non-major business-type funds

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
$ 40,283 % 0
278 29,207
113,481 126.588
115,677 114,314
0 176
10.251 9.685
§ 279970 § 279,970

The government-wide statement of activities eliminates transfers as reported within the
segregated governmental and business-type activities columns. Only transfers between

the two columns appear in this statement.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description — The City of Batesville contributes to the Public Employees’
Rettrement System of Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit
provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State of
Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That information may be
obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429
Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-

444-PERS.
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Note 9.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN-_continued

Funding Policy — PERS members were required to contribute 9.0% of their annual
covered salary and City of Batesville is required to contribute at an actuarially
detennined rate which is currently 15.75% of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of PERS members are established and may be amended only by the State
of Mississippi Legislature. The City of Batesville’s contributions to PERS for the years
ending September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $886,463 $842,542, and $787,993
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

During 2015, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The implementation of the standard required
the City to record its proportionate share of PERS' beginning net Penston liability and the effects on
net position of contributions made by the City during the measurement period. As a result,
beginning net position for Batesville's governmental and business-type activities decreased by
$8,971,609 and $2.666,229 respectively. The restatement of net position was made entirely to
unrestricted net position.

At September 30, 2015, the City reported net pension liability in its governmental and
business-type activities of $10.306,662 and $3,062,986 respectively for a total of $13,369,648.
The total pension assets and liabilities used to calculate the net pension liability were
determined by an actuarial valuation for a measurement date of June 30, 2015, The City's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on its total employer contribution for the
year ended June 30, 2015 relative to all member employer contributions for the same period.
The City's proportion at June 30, 2015 and 2014 was 0.086490% and 0.089505% respectively.

For the year ended September 30, 20135, the City recognized pension expense of $1,271,890.
At September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 3 310,613 h 0
Changes of assumption 1,151,749 0
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 0 359,087
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 245.108 0
Total h) 207,470 § 359087

The $245,108 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulted from City
contributions subsequent of the measurement date, and will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ending September 30, 2016. The other amounts reported as
deferred outflows / inflows of resources will be reported as reductions in net liabilities/pension
expense as follows:
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Note 9, DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN- continued

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

2016 ) 803,100 $ 184,884
2017 545,033 184,884
2018 359,337 184,886
2019 0 (195,567)
2020 0 0
Thereafter 0 i 0
h 1,707,470 A 359,087

A member who terminates employment from all covered employers and who is not eligible to
receive monthly retirement benefits may request a full refund of his or her accumuiated member
contributions plus interest. Upon withdrawal of contributions, a member forfeits service credit
represented by those contributions. Participating members who are vested and retire at or after
age 60 or those who retire regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years
of creditable service for employees who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011) are
entitled, upon application, to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life in an
amount equal to 2.0 percent of their average compensation {or each year of creditable service up to
and including 30 years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus
2.5 percent for each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for
each year of creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age that the member is below
65, whichever is less. Average compensation is the average of the employee's earnings during the four
highest compensated years of creditable service. A member may elect a reduced retirement allowance
payable for life with the provision that, after death, a beneficiary receives benefits for life or for a
specified number of years. Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of membership service (four
years of membership service for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2007). PERS also
provides certain death and disability benefits. In the event of death prior to retirement of any member
whose spouse and/or children are not entitled to a retirement allowance, the deceased member's
accumulated contributions and interest are paid to the designated beneficiary.

A Cost-of-Living Adjustment {COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries. The
COLA is equal to 3.0 percent of the annual retirement allowance for each full fiscal year of retirement
up to the year in which the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those who became members of PERS
before July 1, 2011), with 3.0 percent compounded for each fiscal year thereafter.

Plan provisions and the Board of Trustees' authority to determine contribution rates are established by
Miss. Code Ann. § 25-11-! et seq., {1972, as amended) and may be amended only by the Mississippi
Legislature. The PERS plan financial report is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the Public Employees' Retirement System available at www.PERS. ms.gov.

RECEIVER
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Note 9. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PI.LAN- continued

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00 percent
Salary increases 3.75 - 19.00 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table projected with Scale
BB to 2016 with males rates set forward one year.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July [, 2010 to June 30, 2014. The experience report is dated
May 4, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
nominal retums, net of pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

. Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
U.S. Broad 34.00% 5.20%
International Equity 16.00 5.00
Emerging Markets 8.00 5345
Fixed Income 20.00 0.25
Real Assels 10.00 4.00
Private Equity 8.00 6.15
Cash 1.00 (0.50)
Total 100.00%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate (3.00%) and that employer contributions will be made at the
current employer contribution rate {15.75%). Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be availabie to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Note 9. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN- continued

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what the City's
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.75%) or one percentage point higher
(8.73%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)
City's proportionate share of B
Pensicn iiability $17,622,421 $13,369,648 $9,840,642

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in a separately issued 2015 PERS Comprehensive Annual Report on the
PERS website, www PERS.ms.gov for coilective calculations and note disclosures.

Changes of assumptions. In 2015 and later, the expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the
RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table projected to 2016 using Scale BB rather than the RP-2000
Mortality Table, which was used prior to 2015. In 2015, the expectation of disabled mortality was
changed to the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, rather than the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table,
which was used prior to 2015. Withdrawal rates, pre-retirement mortality rates, disability rates and service
retirement rates were also adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. In 2015, assumed rates of
salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and anticipated experience. Finally, the price
inflation and investment rate of return assumptions were changed from 3.50% to 3.00% and 8.00% to
7.75%, respectively.

Note 10. OPERATING LEASES

The City periodically leases various equipment on monthly or as-needed basis; but has no
long-term, non-cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for 2015 was:

General Fund $ 56,303
Water and Sewer fund 17,561
Gas fund 556
Civic Center fund 3,990

8,410

Note 1. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various Federal
and State agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting
authority, tbe purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the
granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of
these audits is not believed to be material.
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Note 11,

Note 12.

Note 13,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - continued

The City is periodically exposed to various claims against it, as well as to various risks
of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;
and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance, and settled
claims from these risks have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the last three
years. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the current
vear. While at September 30, 2015 the City was involved in certain legal proceedings,
it is City management's opinion that the ultimate disposition of these will not have a
materially adverse impact on the City's financial statements.

The City intends to continue street expansion and improvement projects in 2016 with
estimated costs of $325,000. The project will be funded primarily through City
operations.

The City continues the improvement of the water and sewer systems in the East part of
town. The cost is expected to be approximately $716,000 and will be funded $175,000
by grants with the balance by City operations.

The City also hopes to butld another fire station for approximately $1.2 million, with
the costs to be funded 50% through grants.

There are also plans for the parks department to build a walking trail for approximately
$100.000 to be fully funded by grants; and to begin renovations of City Hall at an
estimated cost of $100,000 which will be funded through city operations.

ERROR CORRECTION

During 20135, it was determined that an error was made when adjusting the
governmental funds presentation to that used in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities. The impact on the 2014 financial statements was:

Over
Stated
Cash $ 207,987
Other general revenues $ 207,987
Net position $ 207,987

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 5, 2016 which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPP!
CITY OF BATESVILLE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

September 30, 2045

FUCHE ]

Bateswille's propartion of he nel pension fiabifiny (%) 0.089505%  0.086450%
Batesville's proportion of the net pension fiability (§) ~ § 10,864,268 § 13,365,548
Batasville's covered-employee payral § 5439788 § 5,641,028
Batesyille's prapartionate share af the net pension

lighlity as 2 percentage of its covered-employee

payrali 1972%  B01%

Plan fiduciary net position as a pecentage of the
total pension liability gU%  eN%

206

ny

a8 08 X

This schedule is presentad to flustrate information for 10 years. However, until 2 full 10-year trend is completed, information is presented

forthose years for which information is availatle.

RECEIVER
MAY 2 3 2015
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CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
TO PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF MISSISSIPR|
September 30, 2015

Fiscal year enced 04 w15 016 2017 018 2019 00 2040 201
Statutarily required emplayer
contributians § 856,768 § 888,463

Contributions in refation to
statutarily required
contributions § 856,768 § 888483

Annuai contributions
deficiency {excess) S -

Covered employee payrol $5439789 § 5,641,028

Actua! contributions as a
percentage of covered-
employee payroll 15.75% 15.75%

This schedule is presented to illustrate information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is completed, informaticn is presented
for those years for which information is available.

2023
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_Name

Jerry Autrey

Teddy Morrow
William W. Dugger
Ted Stewart

Eddie Nabors
Stanley B. Harrison
Susan B. Berryhill

William A. Jones

CITY OF BATESVILLE
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS

Chief of Police

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Position Surety
Mayor Liberty Mutual Surety
Alderman Liberty Mutual Surety
Alderman Liberty Mutual Surety
Alderman Liberty Mutual Surety
Alderman Liberty Mutual Surety
Alderman Liberty Mutual Surety
City Clerk Liberty Mutual Surety

Liberty Mutual Surety

Amount

$ 50,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000

50.000

50,000
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CITY OF BATESVILLE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ORIGINAL AMENDED Favorable
2015 INCREAST 2015 Total {Unfavorable)
BUDGET {DECREASE) BUDGET Actual Varignce
REVENLES
Ad valorem Taxes § 3133000 % 12,000 § 3145000 8 1671345 % (73.653)
Court Fines and Bonds 3,000 1,000 4,000 5872 1,472
Firc Prateclion 43,000 - 43,000 48,680 5680
InTieu of Taxes 432,000 136,000 568,000 360,061 (207,939
Inlerest Earned 35,000 - 35,000 37,343 2343
Licenses 759,000 - 79,000 B9.713 10,713
Park and Recreation Fees 25,000 - 25,000 17,863 (7.137)
Permits 68,700 1,000 69,700 41,880 (28,0200
Police Fines 257,200 100 257,300 238.251 {10.049)
Refunds and Rebates 65,000 2800 57,000 39,410 {27.590)
State of MS-Sales Tax 3,200,000 - 3,200,900 4,169,261 969,26}
State of MS-Streels 10,000 - 10,000 6,946 (30534
Tases-Franchise 320,000 12,000 332,000 304.554 {27,446)
Taxes-Road 485,000 - 485,000 385,516 (99.484)
Rents and Miseellaneous 270,400 7,000 277,400 274 650 {2,750)
Grants 454,500 (10,000} 444 500 121,425 1323,075)
State of MS-Homeslead Exentpiion 104,000 - 104,000 125515 21,315
Total Receipts 8,984,800 161,100 9,145,900 9,338,083 192,185
EXPENDITIRES
General:
Personnel Services (463,000) 17,000 {480,000) (465,784) 14216
Supplies {25,000) 4,500 {29,500 {10,407) 19,003
Other Services and Charges {461,000) 162,400 {623,400} {482,264) 141.136
Capita! Outlay {60,000) 100,000 (160,000) (7,219) 152,781
[Jebt Retirement - - - - -
(1,009,000) 243,900 (1,292.900) (965.674) 327.226
Palice Deparlment:
Personnel Services {2,721,000) 175,000 (2,896,000} (2,773,419) 122,581
Supplies (202,700} . (202,700) {139,990} 62.710
Other Services and Charges (1,176,100) 17,800 {1,193,900) {900,064} 293.836
Capital Outlay (481,500) 97,100 {579,000) (198,202} 380,798
Debt Retirement - - - -
(4,581,700) 289,900 B871600) 40167} 459925
Y e g
RECEIVEL

MAY 23 2016



City Code:
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

City Court:
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

Fire Department:
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Debt Retirement

Street Maintenance:
Persannel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Oullay
Debt Retirement

Public |lealth and Sanitation:
Personnel Scrvices
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Debt Retirement

Purks and Recreation:
Personnel Services
Supplies
Otlher Services and Charges
Capital Qutlay

CITY OF BATESVILLE

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS}-continued

YEAR ENDED SEPEMBER 30, 2015

ORIGINAL AMENDED Favorable
2015 INCREASE 2013 Total (Unfavorable)

BUDGET (DECREASE) BUDGET Actual Variance
5 (199,000) $ 10,000 & (209,000) & (196,740) § 12,260
(10,800) 700 (11,500} (5,340) 6.160
(74,100} 1,300 (75,400} (63,608) 21,792
(9,000} 10,000 {19,000) (2,109) 16,891
(292,900) 22,000 (314,900) (257,757) 57,103
(159,000} 26,000 (185,000) (176,443} 8,557
(7,600) ) {7,600) (2,014) 5,586
{77,700} 7,200 {84,900} (70,392) 14,508
(15,000) . (15,000) (3,887) 11,113
(259,300) 33,200 (292,500) (252,736) 39,764
(1,330,000} 75,000 (1,405,000} (1,207,693} 197,307
(65,000) 1,000 {66,000) (36,836) 25,164
{370,100) 25,200 (355,300) (279,823) 115,477
{529,500) (89,500) (440,000} (118.615) 321,385
{2.294,600) 11,700 (2,306,300) (1,642,967} 663,333
{876,000) 150,000 {1,026,000) (820,224) 205,776
{150,5C0) 7,500 {158&,000) (127,639) 30,361
(442,800} 51,800 (494,600) (276,245) 218355
{2,142,000) 1,163,000 (3,305,000} (882,271) 2,422,729
(3,611.300) 1,372,300 (4,583,600) (2,106,375} 2877221
{269,000) 10,000 {275,000} (254,932) 24,068
(94,500} - (54,500) {46,603) 47.897
(83,700) 24 800 (108,500) (64,017} 44,483
(45,000) - (45,000} (9,219} 35.781
(492,200) 34,800 {527,000 (374,771 132,229
{225,000) - {225,000) {190,892) 34.108
{45,500) 1,000 {46,500) {16,979} 28521
(151,050) 7,550 (158,600) (63,430) 95,170
{185,200) (10,2003 (175,000) (20,726) 154,274
(606,750) (1,650 (605.100) (292,027) 313,073




T.ibrary:
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Nebt Retirement

Total General Fund Fxpendilures

Fxeess Reeeipts (Expenditures)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Interfund Transfers In

Trerfund Transfers Out

Sale of City Assels
Debt Proceeds

Net other (inancing saurces {uses)

k:xeess {deficiency) ol reeeipis and other
saurces over (under) expenditures and ather
uses

Fund balanee, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Adjusiments to GAAD hasis:

Accrued revenues
Accounts payable paid atter Oclober

Fund bulance, ending (GAAP basis)

CITY OF BATESVILLE
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)-continued

YEAR ENDED SEPEMBER 30, 2015

ORIGINAL AMENDED Favorable
2013 INCREASE 2015 Total (Unfavorable)
BUDGET (DECREASE) BUDGET Actual Variance

5 {123,000) % 30.000 S {153,000) §  {119,300] § 33,700
(7,000} 500 (7,500) (4,247) 3253
(191,900 5,100 (197,000) (148,539) 48,461
{30,000} 12,000 {42,000} (4,603) 37,397
(351,900) 47,600 (399,500) {276,689) 122,811
(13,499,650 2,093,750 (15,593,400) {10,180,715) 5,412,685
(4,504,850 1,932,650 (6,447,500} (842,630) 5,604,870
3,000,000 501,900 3,501,800 1,896,398 (1.603,502)
{602,000) (1,983,500) (2,585,500) {86,378) 2,499,122
20,000 2,000 22,000 13,200 18,800)
2,418,000 (1,479,600) 938,400 1,821,220 B84,820
{2,096,850) 3,412,250 {5,509,100) 980,580 6,485,690
5,890,271 5,890,271 5,890,271 -
S 3,793,421 § 3,412,250 § 381,171 6,870,861 $ 6,489,690

118,146

16,774

§ 7005781



CITY OF BATESYILLE
TOURISM TAX FUND
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ORIGINAL AMENDED Favorable
2015 INCREASE 2013 Total (Unfavorable)
BUDGET (DECREASE) BUDGET Actual Variance
REVENUES
Tourism Tax $ 1200000 % - § 1,200,000 § 1189438 §  (10,562)
Interest Income 500 - 500 129 (171)
Total Receipts 1,200,500 - 1,200,500 1,189,767 {10,733)
EXPENDITURES
Tourism Expense (175.000) 5,000 (180,000 {64,879) 115,121
Other Services and Charges {2,900) 100 (3,000) (1,122) 1,878
Total Expenditures {177,900) 5,100 (183,000) (66,001) 116,999
Excess Receipts (Expenditures) 1,022,600 (5.100) 1.017.500 1.123.766 106,266
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund Transfers Qut (1,062,300) (162,500) {900.000) {852,500) 47,500

Excess {deficiency) of receipts and other
sources over (under) expenditures and other

uses {39,900) 157,400 117,500 271.266 153,766
Fund balance, beginning 701,858 - 701,858 701,858
Fund balance, ending $ 661958 § 157400 § 819,358 973,124 % 153766

Adjustments to GAAP basis:

Accrued revenues 6.486

Accounts payable paid after October ~ 42,300

Fund balance. ending (GAAF basis) § 1,022,110
ReGty ey,

MAY 23 201
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CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI
PROPERTY TAX RECONCILIATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 340, 2015

Assessed Value Tax
ASSESSED VALUATION
Realty $ 59,298,560
Personal - other than auto 57,597,721
Public Utilities 1.432,750
Auto and mobile homes 8,472,442
Total City @ 28.05 Mills $ 126,801,473 $ 3,556,781
Less:
Homestead exemption allowed (130,506)
Tax exempt properties { 91,845)
Add:
Actual homestead reimbursement 130,b119
Prior year tax collections 0
In liev of taxes 360.061
Total to be accounted for 3.824,610
Taxes,
Penalties, Homestead
CREDITS Inlerest Reimbursement Total
Collections allocated to:
General Fund $ 2,466,508 $ 125,515
Fire Protection 29,475 -
Library 575,361 -
Civic Center Debt 235,804 4.603
Totals $ 3307148 § 130,118 $ 3.,437266
In lieu of taxes 360,061
Balance represented by:
Unknown variance 27.283
Total accounted for: $ 1824610
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CITY OF BATESYILLE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITLRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Faderal Agency/ Catalog of Pass-through
Pass-through enity Federal Domestic Entity
Program Title Assistance Number  [denlifying Number

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through Mississippi Depariment of Public Safety
Homeland Security Grant 07,067 [{HSSINIT

LS. Department of Transportation
Passed theough Mississippt Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Constraction 20205 STR-0012-00¢127)

LS. Department of Justice
Direct Program:
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607

Appalachian Regional Commission
Passed through Mississippi Develapment Autnority
Appalachian Area Development Grant 23.002 MS-17963

Environmental Protection Agency

Direct Program:
Cangressionally Mandated Projects 66.202 XP-00DO1812

Total of all Federal Awards

See accampanying nates to schedule ta expenditures of federal awards.

Federal

Expenditures

1,300

479.991

$

80,333

24,634



Notel.

Note 2.

CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Batesville, Mississippi under programs of the federal government for
the year ended September 30, 2015. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the City of Batesville, Mississippi, it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the
City of Batesville, Mississippi.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
A reconciliation to the amounts reported as grants in the Statement of Activities is:

Operating grants and contributions 3 4,886
Capital grants and contributions 1,262,279
Less amounts of contributions {371,484)
Less amounts of state grants {197.258)
§ 698,423

A reconciliation from the cash basis expenditures to the accrual basis is:

Cash basis federal $ 470,748

Accrued and recognized in 2015 303,267

Accrued and recognized in 2014 (75,592)
3 698,423
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CITY OF BATESVILLE
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Findings 2014-001: Financial Statements and Related Disclosures.

Condition; This finding was a material weakness stating the City relies on its outside auditors for the
preparation of external financial statements and related footnote disclosures.

Current Status: The city continues to feel that the outsourcing continues to be less costly than establishing
internal controls over hiring and continually training the necessary staff to perform these tasks.

Finding 2014-002: Utility Biiling Sofiware and Reports.

Condition: This finding was a material weakness in that the various utility billing reports were not being
adequately reviewed for accuracy and reconciled to actual cash activity.

Recommendation: It was recommended that additional training be obtained from the software provider,
and that a closer review of the reports be performed.

Current Status: Additional training was obtained for the utility clerks. and additional report review
procedures were established and implemented. While this resulted in more accurate billings, we noted
that errors continue to occur involving the accurate allocation of cash collections among the various utility
funds. This is reported as finding 2015-002.

Finding 2014-003: Utility Customer Deposits.

Condition: This finding was a material weakness whereby the application of customer deposits were not
reflected in the various utility funds.

Recommendation: It was recommended that the utilization of customer deposits be entered into a
spreadsheet, with the resulting monthly totals entered into the appropriate funds through a combination of
cash transactions and adjusting entries.

Current Status: While it was noted that the customer deposit information was now being entered into
spreadsheets, the resulting applications among the utility funds were still not being made. This is reported
as finding 2015-003.

Finding 2014-004: Utility Billing Adjustments.

Condition: This finding was a significant deficiency whereby not all documentation required by the City
to support adjustments to customer utility bills was being retained.

Recommendation: [t was recommended that full supporting documentation of the circumstances involved
along with managerial approval be obtained and retained.

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted in fiscal 2015, and no similar findings were noted
during the 2015 audit.

RECEiviy 58
MAY 23 2015



CITY OF BATESVILLE
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Environmental Protection Agency

Finding 2014-005: Congresstonally Mandated Projects.

Condition: This finding was a significant deficiency whereby a project contractor was paid in
excess of the accepted bid amounts.

Recommendation: 1t was recommended that greater care be taken in verifying the completeness and
accuracy of grant-related reports, and that internal audit functions be expanded to reconcile such
report activity to the City’s general ledger detail.

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted and the overpayment collected in March, 2015.
No similar findings were noted in the 2015 audit.
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WILLIAM H. POLK & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

A Professional Assoviation

MFMBERS:
AMFRICAN INSTITHTF OF CERTIFITT PUBLIC ACL OUNTANTS
MISSISSIPRL SOCIETY OF CERTIFIFD PUBRLIC ACCUUNTANTS
DIVISION FOR CPA TIRMS PRIVATE COMPANIES PRACTICE SELTION

BATESVILLE: HERNANDO:

105 PUBLIC SQUARE 2540 HIGHWAY 51 SOUTH
BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 38606 HERNANDO. MISSISSIPPI 38632
TELEPHONE (662) $63-8661 TELEPHONE (662) 563-R8661
FAX (662) 563-Ba66 FAX {662) 561-8666

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Batesville, Mississippi

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of City of Batesvilie, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Batesville, Mississippi's basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 5, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Batesville,
Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Batesville,
Mississippi's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Batesville, Mississippi's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses, and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employecs, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of dcficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
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nol be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis, We consider the deficiencies described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2015-001, and 2015-002 to be
material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item 2015-003 to be a sigmificant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Batesville, Mississippi's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Governmental Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that are reported in the accompanying report on compliance with the
requirements of the office of the state auditor dated May 5, 2016.

City of Batesville, Mississippi’s Response to Findings

City of Batesville, Mississippi’s response to findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Batesville, Mississippi’s response
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

4o Y S S

Batesville, Mississippi
May 5,2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
— REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Batesville, Mississippi

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Batesville, Mississippi’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circulard-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of City of Batesviile, Mississippi’s major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2015. City of Batesville, Mississippi's major federal programs are identified in
the auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Anditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Batesville, Mississippi’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-1 33 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about City of Batesville, Mississippi's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasenable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audil docs not provide a legal determination of City of Batesville, Mississippi’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Batesville, Mississippi complied, in all matcrial respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control over Complianee

Management of City of Batesville, Mississippi is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Batesvillc,
Mississippi 's intermal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to dctermine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposc of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the eftectiveness of City of
Batesville. Mississippt’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ot performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 4
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this scction and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Batesvilte, Mississippi

May 5. 2016 hEuElﬁVﬁD
MAY 2 3 2015
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CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued Linmodified
Internal control over financial reporting
o Material weaknesses identified X _yes no

¢ Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses X Ves ___none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __ yes _X ho
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

s Material weaknesses identified ____yes X no

» Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses yes X_none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmoditied

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-133? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

23.002 Appalachian Regional Commission
Appalachian Area Development

66.202 Congressionally Mandated Projects

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee gualified as low-risk auditee? yes X _no

64



CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Section 2: Findings — Financial Statement Audit

2015-001 Financial Statements and Related Disclosures

Condition: As is common for governments of this type and size, the City relies on its outside
auditors for the preparation of external financial statements and related footnote disclosures.

Criteria: The City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls over
financial reporting. Under generally accepted auditing standards, outside auditors cannot be
considered a part of the City’s control structure, and the design of the City’s internal control
structure does not include procedures for its preparation of external financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)

Cause: Due to the size limitations and workload requirements of the City’s small staff, the
City has not designed internal control procedures for preparing external financial statements
in accordance with GAAP.

Effect: The City must incur the expense of outsourcing the preparation of its external financial
statements, related footnote disclosures and required supplemental information.

Recommendation: Due to the limited size of the City’s staff and the cost of hiring and maintaining

additional qualified personnel, no immediate change is felt to be warranted or recommended.

Response: We agree with the findings, but feel that the City is best served by continuing to
outsource the preparation of such financial statements. This is less costly than establishing the
internal controls over hiring and continually training the necessary staff to perform these tasks.
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CITY OF BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

2015-002 Utility Collection Allocation

Condition: As the City’s utility billing software does not allocate cash collections among the various
utility funds, the City utilizes spreadsheets to compute allocations based upon billing percentages.
However, it was noted that these allocation reports were not always used to make accurate and timely
cash transfers among the utility funds.

Criteria: Accurate and timely allocations of utility collections shoutd be made so that each funds
financial statements can be accurately prepared.

Cause: A combination of staff reassignments, increased workload, and a change-over in bookkeeping
software during 2015.
Effect: Significant errors may occur in the financial statements, as well as misleading cash balances

among the utility funds.

Recommendation: Once the cash allocation spreadsheets are approved, the appropriate cash transfers
should be made and recorded that business day.

Response: We agree with the finding, and will implement the proper use of the spreadsheets.

2015-003 Utility Customer Deposits

Condition: As the City’s utility software does not allocate the application of customer deposits among
the various utility funds, the City maintains separare spreadsheets that calculate the proper allocation.
However, the monthly results were not appropriately entered into the various funds general ledgers.

Criteria: Each municipal fund’s activity is to be accounted for separately and accurately.

Cause: While the spreadsheets were maintained, the monthly totals were not recorded by a combination

of adjusting entries and actual cash transfers.

Effect: The individual utility funds may not provide for accurate financial information.

Recommendations: At least at the end of each month. The approved activity of the spreadsheet should
be reflected in the utility funds by the means of actual cash transfers._

Response: We agree with the finding, and will implement the proper use of the spreadsheets

RECEIVED
MAY 23 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE

REQUIREMENTS OF THE OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR, AS
SET FORTH IN THE MUNICIPAL COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Batesville, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Batesville, Mississippi as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2015 which collectively comprise the City of Batesville,
Mississippi ‘s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 5, 2016.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we
have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state [aws and regulations. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of those procedures and our audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed the
following immaterial instance of noncompliance with state laws and regulations.

2014-005 Budgets

Condition and Effect; The City had 4 instances whereby expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts. Two of
these related to interfund transfers and one related to capital expenditures.

Criteria: The City is required, by state statutes, to prepare budgets for ail funds to the City and to monitor
and modify the budget as necessary to ensure all expenditures are within the budgeted amounts,

Cause: It was apparent that the City reviews and amends its budgets. However, certain expenditures were
under estimated.
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Recommendation: Greater care should be taken when projecting expenditures during the amendment
process.

Response: We agree with the findings and will make every effort to adequately budget all expenditures.

This report is intended for the information of the City’s management and the Office of the State Auditor and
is not intended to be and should not be uscd by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this
report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

L A DA .

Batesville, Mississippi
May 5, 2016

RECEW{:Q
MAY 23 201 68
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